VANCOUVER SENATE

MINUTES OF 18 SEPTEMBER 2013

Attendance

Present: Prof. S.J. Toope (President and Chair), Ms M. Hartley (Secretary), Mr T. Ahmed, Dr R. Anstee, Dean G. Averill, Dr K. Baimbridge, Mr G. Beales, Dr J. Belanger, Ms E. Biddlecombe, Dr J. Brander, Principal H. Brock, Mr B. Caracheo, Mr C. Chan, Dr G. Chapman, Dr P. Choi, Dr M. Coughtrie, Prof. B. Craig, Dr W. Dunford, Mr P. Edgcumbe, Dr D. Farrar (Provost and Vice-President, Academic), Mr D. Fernandez, Dean B. Frank, Rev. Dr C. Godwin, Ms V. Goyal, Mr S. Haffey, Dr W. Hall, Dr P. Harrison, Dean R. Helsley, Dr I. Ivanov, Ms J. Jagdeo, Ms N. Karimi, Ms A. Kessler, Dr U. Kumar, Mr J. Lee, Mr C. Leonoff, Dr P. Leung, Dr P. Loewen, Mr T. MacLachlan, Ms K. Mahal, Ms M. Maleki, Dr F. Marra, Ms N. Marshall, Dr W McKee, Mr W. McNulty, Dr D. O'Donoghue, Dr I. Parent, Prof. M. Parlange, Dr K. Patterson, Dean S. Peacock, Dr N. Perry, Dean *pro tem.* S. Porter, Mr M. Prescott, Dr R. Reid, Dr A. Riseman, Ms T. Rosseel, Dr L. Rucker, Dean C. Shuler, Ms T. Shum, Dr R. Sparks, Ms S. Sterling, Rev. Dr R. Topping, Mr D. Verma, Dr L. Walker, Dr R. Windsor-Liscombe, Dr D. Witt.

Regrets: Dean M.A. Bobinski, Dr L. Burr, Prof. B. Goold, Dr S. Grayston, Rev. Dr M. Hagemoen, Dean J. Innes, Dean M. Isman, Dr S. Knight, Dr B.S. Lalli, Prof. B. MacDougall, Dr P. Marshall, Ms M. McKenna, Ms S. Morgan-Silvester, Principal L. Nasmith, Ms M. Patton, Dr J. Plessis, Dr D. Simunic, Dr S. Singh, Dean G. Stuart, Mr M. Thom, Dr S. Thorne, Dr M. Vessey, Dr R. Wilson.

Guests: Dr F. Andrew, Dr B. Bemmels, Ms S. Bigam, Mr O. Longman, Ms S. Nakata, Ms E. Stearman, Mr F. Wen.

Recording Secretary: Mr C. Eaton.

Call to Order

The President called the first meeting of the Vancouver Senate for the 2013/2014 academic year to order

Senate Membership

The Secretary welcomed the following new members to Senate:

- Dr James Brander, Faculty Representative for the Faculty of Commerce & Business Administrator to replace Dr Ralph Winter (resigned).
- Dr Michael Coughtrie, Dean of the Faculty of Pharmaceutical Sciences to replace Dean *Pro Tem.* K Wayne Riggs
- The Rev. Dr Colin Godwin, Representative of Carey Theological College to replace Dr Brian Stelck
- Dr Marc Parlange, Dean of the Faculty of Applied Science to replace Dean *pro tem*. Eric Hall

Vol. 2012/13 12/13 - 1

• The Rev. Dr Richard Topping, Representative of the Vancouver School of Theology to replace the Rev. Dr Stephen Farris

Minutes of the Previous Meeting

Lance Rucker } That the Minutes of the Meeting of 15 May 2013 William McNulty be adopted as presented.

Approved.

Remarks from the Chair

The president apologised for the length of his remarks given the start of the year. He first commented on the Commerce Undergraduate Society (CUS) Frosh Week situation, noting that this was a sad set of events that the University will address with the utmost seriousness. Professor Toope advised that the CUS has accepted responsibility as have involved individuals. The president further noted that he did not just consider this to be an issue at Commerce and the response would be University-wide.

Professor Toope informed Senate that he had just returned from the Truth and Reconciliation Commission's West Coast Final National Event. The President expressed his thanks to Senate for suspended classes to allow for robust faculty and student participation.

Professor Toppe noted that 7 824 new undergraduate students arrived at UBC Vancouver this year, this represented a small decrease from last year of about 3%. There are now 31 589 undergraduate students on the campus.

Dr Kathleen (Kate) Ross has been appointed Registrar; she is presently the Registrar at Simon Fraser University. The President commented that there is a strong focus in Dr Ross' career on student services and strategic enrolment management and that she has been a national champion on student aid issues.

The President noted that nominations for honorary degrees would close on 30 September and he urged Senators to nominate qualified persons. He suggested that UBC could do better in recognizing leading academics.

In terms of government relations, the President advised that he had met with our new Minister of Advanced Education three times and that Minister Virk has now visited both of our campuses. Professor Toope suggested that the minister seems engaging and open to discussing ideas, as does his new deputy minister. It was noted that both of these officials are new to these levels of office.

Professor Toope advised that the Association of Universities and Colleges of Canada (AUCC) has submitted its recommendations to the House of Commons budget committee. The AUCC has made recommendations in three key areas: increased funding for granting councils – with strong

emphasis on their core granting budgets, support for the indirect costs of research, and increased and continued support for infrastructure for the CFI for future budgets.

It was noted by the President that the arbitrator appointed has issued an award between UBC and the Faculty Association allowing for a 2.5% increase for faculty members. This is above the provincially mandated limited of 2%. The arbitrator's rationale for this was the importance of UBC maintaining its ratio with comparator institutions. The president did note that this award would mean increased pressures upon faculty operating budgets.

Professor Toope advised that he had recently visited China with the Vice-President Research & International and several deans, where he was able to meet with the Vice-Minister of Education who agreed to extend support for the China Scholarship Council students, to try to increase the number of PhD and to extend to masters and possibly undergraduate students. Professor Toope also signed an agreement with the City of Chongqing that designated as the principle academic partner for one of the largest cities in the world. It was noted that UBC is just one of many players in Beijing or Shanghai, but that Chongqing has been more selective in its choice of partners. The President went on to say that he concluded his visit by attending events in Shanghai and Hong Kong, with the latter having a strong alumni and development focus: a number of major gifts were made for the alumni centre and this has allowed us to go ahead with that project.

Finally, the President reminded Senate of his exchange of correspondence with the Writers' Union of Canada and UBC due to our approach on fair dealing and copyright. We have issued a letter that outlines our position and notes that we pay upwards of \$25M to authors and publishers, and only \$1M of this is course packs. He advised that UBC undertook a rigorous clearance system for course pack materials, and some of that is transactional or used under fair dealings. At UBC, the evaluation for fair dealings is undertaken by trained staff. There are a small number of publishers that refuse to provide transactional clearances for materials and this means that there are some materials that cannot be included in course packs. In conclusion he happily noted that UBC has managed to reduce the cost of course packs to students by 33%.

Dean Averill complimented the President for the clarity of his letter around the Writers' Union situation.

From the Board of Governors

The President confirmed that the following recommendations of Senate were approved by the Board of Governors:

Senate Meeting of April 17 2013

New awards

Curriculum proposals from the faculties of Applied Science, Arts, Education, Forestry, Graduate Studies (Arts, Medicine, and Applied Science), Pharmaceutical Sciences, and Science

Meeting of 15 May 2013

Awards

Curriculum proposals from the faculties of Arts, Commerce & Business Administration, Graduate and Postdoctoral Studies (Applied Science, Commerce & Business Administration Science), Land & Food Systems, and Medicine

Academic Policy Committee

The Chair of the Senate Academic Policy Committee, Dr Paul Harrison, presented.

Paul Harrison } That the Senate approve the attached Code of Philip Loewen Conduct for the Faculty of Pharmaceutical Sciences.

Dr Harrison noted that the faculty wanted to make clear to all members of its learning community the expectation and terms for conduct.

Senator Belanger commended the faculty for the code, in terms of both the process and product. He asked how it would be incorporated into the curriculum.

Dr Harrison replied that this document would be reflected in the curriculum.

With permission of Senate, Dr Patricia Gerber advised that this would be included. This document was to frame professionalism in the faculty and there were many activities planned to ensure that this was a living integrated document.

Senator Edgcumbe asked if there would be consequences for violating the policy.

Dr Gerber advised that the document was intended to establish expectations and work with existing policies that apply to students in classrooms and labs.

Senator Edgcumbe asked if a student could be penalised for not following the policy.

Dr Gerber advised that the intent was not to penalise but to establish expectations.

Dr Harrison added that the policy applied to everyone, not just students.

Senator Witt asked what happens for those who violate it.

Dr Harrison advised that other policies would come into action.

Dean Coughtrie stated that this was a statement of expectations, not a document to supplant the existing policies around discipline.

Approved.

NB: Abstention noted for Philip Edgcumbe

Joint Report of the Admissions, Curriculum, and Academic Policy Committees

}

The Chair of the Senate Academic Policy Committee, Dr Paul Harrison, presented the join report on behalf of the committees.

Paul Harrison Robert Sparks That Senate approve the proposed Dual Degrees Program Option in the Bachelor of Commerce, and its associated courses, to be offered in partnership by the University and L'Institut d'études politiques (IEP) (Sciences Po), and forward the terms of the affiliation to the Council of Senates for consideration.

Senator Mahal asked what Board policies would apply to students in this program.

The Associate Secretary advised that he would follow up with the Vice-President Student's office on this matter.

Senator Mahal noted that current UBC students would like the option to complete dual degrees with the Bachelor of commerce.

A student senator asked if this would limit option availability.

With permission of Senate, Dr Brian Bemmels confirmed that students could access any option, but two options would not be possible.

Approved.

Curriculum Committee

Dr Kenneth Baimbridge presented on behalf of Dr Peter Marshall, Chair of the Senate Curriculum Committee.

SUMMER CURRICULUM REPORT

See Appendix A: Curriculum Report

Kenneth Baimbridge Katharine Patterson } That Senate ratify the decisions of the Senate Curriculum Committee regarding the attached proposals.

Senator Baimbridge advised that several of these courses were already being offered this term; the Committee has delegated authority from Senate to approve items over the summer, subject to Senate's ratification.

Approved.

CERTIFICATE PROGRAMS

Senator Baimbridge informed Senate that pursuant to the policy on Approval of Certificate Programs, the following new certificates in the Faculty of Education have been approved by the Senate Curriculum Committee on behalf of the University:

- Graduate Certificate in Adult Learning and Education
- Graduate Certificate in Orientation and Mobility

Nominating Committee

The Chair of the Senate Nominating Committee, Dr Rhodri Windsor-Liscombe, presented.

CHANGES TO COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIPS

Rhodri Windsor-Liscombe } Kenneth Baimbridge That Senate approve the following revisions to the membership of Committees of Senate:

Academic Policy Committee
Dr. Colin Godwin to replace Dr. Brian Stelck

Admissions Committee
Dr. James Brander to replace Dr. Ralph
Winter

Curriculum Committee

Dr. Bill McKee to replace Ms. Erin Biddlecombe, Ms. Anne Kessler to replace Mr. Casey Chan

Student Awards Committee
Dr. Colin Godwin to replace Dr. Brian Stelck

Tributes Committee
Dr. James Brander to replace Dr. Ralph
Winter

Approved.

AMMENDMENTS TO BOARD/SENATE POLICY #21- APPOINTMENTS OF DEANS AND PRINCIPALS

Rhodri Windsor-Liscombe }
Sean Haffey

That Senate approve the amendments to Policy #21 – Appointment of Deans and Principals (Joint Senate and Board Policy) as presented.

The Committee Chair briefly outlined the nature of the proposed amendments.

Senator Baimbridge asked if this would end his dean's term early and why extensions were not addressed.

Senator Windsor-Liscombe confirmed that this would not change any current appointments.

Mr Eaton advised that extensions to appointments were covered by another Board policy.

Approved.

CHANGES TO COMPOSITION OF SENATE

Rhodri Windsor-Liscombe William McNulty That Senate amend Section 3.5 of the Rules and Procedures of Senate, effective as of the 2014 – 2017 Vancouver Senate Triennium, as follows (additions shown underlined, deletions shown in strikethrough): Membership and Officers of the Senate 5. Membership of the Senate is as set out in Section 35.1 (2) the University Act, with such other members with the following additions as permitted under Section 35.1 (2) (k) of the University Act:
a. Eight (8) additional representatives of the Convocation, elected by and from the Members of the Convocation who are not also faculty members;

- b. A representative of the professional librarians, elected by and from the rofessional librarians;
- c. The Principal of the College of Health Disciplines;
- d. The Principal of the College for Interdisciplinary Studies;
- e. Two (2) faculty members from the College for Interdisciplinary Studies, elected by and from the Joint Faculties faculty members with appointments to the College; and
- f. One (1) student from the College for Interdisciplinary Studies, elected by and from the graduate students at the Vancouver

<u>Campus.</u> students in programs offered through the College

Approved.

Student Awards Committee

See Appendix B: Awards Report

Senator Nancy Perry presented on behalf of Dr Sue Grayston, Chair of the Student Awards Committee.

Nancy Perry Lance Rucker That Senate accept the awards as listed and forward them to the Board of Governors for approval; and that letters of thanks be sent to the donors.

Approved.

Report from the President

ANNUAL REPORT OF THE OMBUDSPERSON 2012

The President introduced Ms Shirley Nakata, Ombudsperson for Students.

}

Ms Nakata presented some basic statistics to give the Senate an idea of the work her office had this year. She noted that in terms of caseload her office has had a constant increase each year but was expected to settle next year or the year after with 400 cases per year.

Last year, 40% of cases were graduate students and this year it is 36%. With the undergraduate students it is mostly the upper division. The time required is around the same for graduate and undergraduates. Undergraduate students mostly have process questions; with graduate students it is mostly navigating relationships.

Around 1/3rd of students seen by the Office have some out-of-Canada living experience; for Graduate students this is closer to 50%.

Ms Nakata noted that the bulk of Ombuds office work is giving students advice and information. Our goal is to build their capacity and confidence. We want them to build a skillset to move through conflict productively. The main business of the office is promoting fairness; at the nucleus of every conflict is a sense of fairness or unfairness. She went on to suggest that perceptions of fairness are cultural, asking how do we communicate? How do we view

authority? What is academic achievement? She further discussed the idea of a cultural baseline that was important when it came to tribunals assessing people giving evidence. As adjudicators why apply our own social norms to non-verbal expressions. It is not enough to just let people know that such issues exist; you have to tell them expressly what these things are.

The Ombudsperson noted that culture impacts on our roles and responsibilities and what expectations we have. She suggested that we needed to start at a place where we assume that differences to exist.

The Ombudsperson then went on outline some suggestions her office has recently made, suggesting that we need consistent practices around communicating important rules and practices:

- With our rules we should use a purposive approach. Sameness does not equal fairness.
- Have information accessible and easy to find
- Be Repetitive if it's important
- Be explicit
- Talk about rules early.

Ms Nakata suggested that we have all had experiences with unreasonable complainant, be that a student or a faculty member. We can learn from these experiences. It could be that a complaint is trivial, but beyond the annoyance factor, there may be an opportunity there to improve what we do to change the circumstances for the next complainant.

The ombudsperson thanked those present for working with her office.

Senator Edgcumbe asked at what point did graduate students visit.

Ms Nakata replied that it was more towards the end of their programs or after watershed moments. Graduate students did not generally come early enough, tending to put up with a lot of adversary before taking action.

The President expressed his support and thanks for Ms Nakata's work. He reminded Senators that the Supreme Court of Canada has taken a purposive approach to its decisions as well.

Report from the Faculty of Forestry

David Farrar } Th
Lance Rucker Me

That Senate approve the amendments to the Membership of the Faculty of Forestry as amended:

By general consent the motion was amended to correct the name of Faculty of Graduate and Postdoctoral Studies.

Approved.

Report from the Provost

DR PATRICIA CLUGSTON VGH & UBC HOSPITAL FOUNDATION CHAIR IN BREAST RECONSTRUCTION SURGERY

David Farrar } That Senate approve the establishment of the Peter Choi Dr Patricia Clugston VGH & UBC Hospital Foundation Chair in Breast Reconstruction Surgery.

Approved.

INTEGRATION OF HEALTH DISCIPLINES

The Provost noted that this would be a short update on a long and complex issue. Conversations have been ongoing for the past year on this topic. The Provost stated that he chairs a group of health academic administrators and we have asked how we can approach health in a more integrated manner as we move towards a more integrated healthcare system.

The health imperative comes from our belief that the current healthcare system does not optimally address the needs of patients or funders. UBC could play an important role in moving changes in that system. Conversations are around a number of collaborative areas. On the research and educational sides we have groups looking at using technology.

Dr Farrar advised that we have another group led by the dean of medicine looking to form an academic health sciences centre to link us with the health authorities. This unit would stimulate research activities and provide for more seamless interaction between health researchers and providers. Another group is looking at integrating the financial support for health units and preliminary discussions around IT integration. This is driven by a desire to provide better support but also because the Board is asking for reduced risk exposure in these areas.

The Provost noted that invariably people wonder about structure, and this is the conversation – structure - we are about to start with the faculties; one idea to date would be to create new faculty: a faculty of health. This option would be a unified faculty that would have schools within it for disciplines. The Provost noted that this would be a very complex organization.

Senator Hall asked how a faculty of health would function with one school the size of SFU and many small ones could provide leadership around health.

Dave advised that in addition to the size of Medicine, there are large ranges of concerns around power dynamics. We started conversations around leaving Medicine as is and creating another faculty next to it. Perhaps we could move things out of medicine such as its constituent schools. This seemed acceptable to the schools. The size and power imbalance is a complex issue.

In our opinion the status quo is not acceptable. The current structure does not easily deal with issues such as curriculum development.

Senator Baimbridge asked what consultation would be with the faculty. This conversation has been at a high level; at what point would we actually engage faculty members and not just senior administrators.

Dr Farrar replied that we are just starting this process. We will be meeting with associate deans and unit heads next, and in a month or so start to meet with faculty members at large.

Senator Chapman asked what units would be involved.

The Provost stated that Medicine, Dentistry, Pharmacy, Kinesiology, Nursing were primary considerations. Health is a spectrum. Kinesiology was across a line in that it does not have a professional college, but Social Work and Food Nutrition and Health could be options. Dr Farrar suggested that UBC would not want a new unit that was almost all of the University however.

Senator Averill asked if we could provide leadership to the province with seven units, suggesting that the province has a singular notion around health at present.

The Dean of Applied Science expressed his pleasure from recent comments from Nursing suggesting their current happiness within the Faculty of Applied Science.

Adjournment

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 7:30 pm.

Appendix A: Curriculum Report

Faculty of Applied Science

New courses:

MINE 591 (1)

MINE 592 (3/9)d

NAME 501 (2)

NAME 502 (4)

NAME 522 (3)

NAME 524 (3)

NAME 566 (3)

NAME 578 (3)

NAME 591 (4)

NAME 592 (2)

Faculty of Commerce & Business Administration

New courses:

EMBA 596 (3-6)d

EMBA 597 (1.5)

Faculty of Education

New course:

EDCP 392 (3)

Faculty of Graduate & Postdoctoral Studies

Applied Science:

New course:

MTRL 579 (3)

Arts

New courses:

HIST 595 (3-6)d SOWK 516 (3)

Education

New courses:

EPSE 578 (3)

LLED 513 (3)

Land and Food Systems

Program Name Change:

Applied Animal Biology (Formerly Animal Science)

New Course Code:

AANB - Applied Animal Biology

New courses:

FOOD 512 (3); FRE 516 (3); FRE 585 (3)

Medicine

New courses:

AUDI 551 (1) SURG 514 (3)

Faculty of Pharmaceutical Sciences

Revised course:

PHAR 299 (6)

Appendix B: Awards Report

New Awards:

ALEXANDER, Holburn, Beaudin + Lang Award in Law – The law firm Alexander, Holburn, Beaudin + Lang LLP has established a \$1,000 award for a student completing the second year of the JD program who has achieved high academic standing and demonstrated involvement in community or student affairs. This scholarship has been established to honour the memory of Ernest A. Alexander, Q.C. who passed away unexpectedly in 1983 and who, throughout his professional career, never lost sight of the human aspect of the practice of law. The recommendation will be made by the Faculty of Law. Students must apply for this award. (First Award Available in the 2013/2014 Winter Session)

Dr. Yusuf ALTINTAS Manufacturing Automation Graduate Scholarship in Mechanical Engineering — Scholarships totalling \$1,000 have been endowed in recognition of Dr. Yusuf Altintas, a faculty member in the Department of Mechanical Engineering who founded the Manufacturing Automation Laboratory (MAL) at UBC, for graduate students in the Department of Mechanical Engineering. Candidates must demonstrate interest and academic accomplishment in one of the fields of machine tool vibrations and control, metal cutting mechanics, Computer Aided Manufacturing (CAM) or precision engineering. To be considered, candidates must excel academically in four of the following graduate courses: Advanced Mathematics, Vibrations, Control Theory, Kinematics, Finite Element Methods, Metal Cutting Mechanics, Machine Tool Structures, Computer Control of Machines, Metrology, Mechatronics Instrumentation and Computer Aided Manufacturing. Recommendations are made by the Department of Mechanical Engineering in consultation with the Faculty of Graduate and Postdoctoral Studies. (First Award Available in the 2013/2014 Winter Session)

ARTS Aboriginal Valour Award – A \$5,000 award has been established to support an Aboriginal student pursuing his or her undergraduate degree in the Faculty of Arts who demonstrates leadership and has overcome adversity in completing their degree. The award is made on the recommendation of the Faculty of Arts, in consultation with the First Nations House of Learning. (First Award Available in the 2013/2014 Winter Session)

ASSOCIATION of Latin American Students International Student Award – A \$1,000 award is offered by the Association of Latin American Students at UBC to international undergraduate students in any year of study at the University of British Columbia (Vancouver campus), who are citizens of the following countries: Argentina, Belize, Bolivia, Brazil, Chile, Colombia, Costa Rica, Cuba, Dominican Republic, Ecuador, El Salvador, Equatorial Guinea, French Guiana, Guatemala, Guyana, Haiti, Honduras, Mexico, Nicaragua, Panama, Paraguay, Peru, Puerto Rico, Spain, Suriname, Uruguay, and Venezuela. In addition to academic merit, consideration is given to qualities such as leadership skills, contribution to community service, and involvement in student affairs. The award is made on the recommendation of a selection committee comprised of international student advisors from the Faculties, in consultation with International Student Development and the International Student Initiative. (First Award Available in the 2013/2014 Winter Session)

Barbara and Bob ATKINSON Thunderbird Men's Basketball Award – One or more awards, ranging from a minimum value of \$500 to the maximum allowable under athletic association guidelines, are offered to members of Thunderbird Men's Varsity Basketball team in any year of study. Awards are made on the recommendation of the President's Athletic Awards Committee for outstanding students who have demonstrated excellent leadership skills and maintained good academic standing. (First Award Available in the 2013/2014 Session)

BLENHEIM Trust Men's Rugby Award – One or more annual awards, ranging from a minimum value of \$1,000 to the maximum allowable under athletic association guidelines are offered by Blenheim Realty to encourage, support and recognize academic excellence in varsity sport at UBC. The awards are offered to members of Thunderbird Men's Varsity Rugby team with preference first given to those who are recognized by the university as Academic All Canadians and secondly students in the Sauder School of Business. Awards are made on the recommendation of the Varsity Athletic Awards Committee. (First Award Available in the 2013/2014 Winter Session)

J. Armand BOMBARDIER Sustainable Transportation Fellowship – Three fellowships of \$5,000 each have been endowed by Bombardier for graduate students in the School of Community and Regional Planning who are who are focused on research in any one of the three areas: equity and community engagement, population and public health and environmental and sustainability issues associated with transportation. Each awardee is eligible for an additional \$800 in travel funding for research related activities. Recommendations are made by the School of Community and Regional Planning in consultation with the Faculty of Graduate and Postdoctoral Studies. (First Available in the 2014/2015 Winter Session)

Velma T. and Lawrence G. Y. CHEN Graduate Award in Asian Studies – A \$1,750 award is offered, in memory of Velma T. and Lawrence G. Y. Chen, to a graduate student in the Department of Asian Studies whose research focuses on China. The award will support a student who plans to undertake fieldwork and short-term research stints in Asia; attend conferences, workshops and short courses; attend intensive language training courses, or the like. The award is made on the recommendation of the Department of Asian Studies in consultation with the Faculty of Graduate and Postdoctoral Studies. (First Award Available in the 2013/2014 Winter Session)

Reginald L. CLARKSON Memorial Award in Athletics – One or more awards with a minimum value of \$500 each have been established by Reginald L. Clarkson's family and friends, in recognition of Reg's impact on UBC Athletics and the community. The awards are available for outstanding student-athletes who have demonstrated excellent leadership skills and maintained good academic standing. In the spirit of Reg's lifelong passion for participation in team sports and for lending a helping hand to others who needed it, preference will be given to student-athletes who have a financial need that is not being met by other means. Awards are made on the recommendation of the Varsity Athletic Awards Committee. (First Award Available in the 2013/2014 Winter Session)

Wilhelmina Elizabeth and Herbert CRANER Memorial Bursary – Bursaries totalling \$4,500 have been endowed by the Estate of Willhelmina Elizabeth Craner for students pursuing studies in fine arts. Mrs. Craner passed away in 2010. Herbert Craner was an avid artist who painted and created First Nations' masks and totems as well as clay artwork. Recommendations are made by Enrolment Services. (First Award Available in the 2013/2014 Winter Session).

ECHORIDGE Education Foundation Southern Medical Program Scholarship – A \$1,500 scholarship is offered by the Echoridge Education Foundation for a student in the second year of the UBC Faculty of Medicine Southern Medical Program. Preference is given to students with a record of community and volunteer service and leadership. The award is made on the recommendation of the Faculty of Medicine Southern Medical Program. (First Award Available in the 2013/2014 Winter Session)

ETHIOPIAN Transit Workers' Association Award – A \$1,000 award is offered by the Ethiopian Transit Workers' Association to a graduate student in the School of Community and Regional Planning who exhibits excellence in academic, professional and community activities and most of all who has a vision for sustainable public transit planning. The Ethiopian Transit Workers' Association is a non-profit organization whose members are employed with TransLink's bus division and are engaged in community and youth empowerment programs and believe in building vibrant and sustainable community. This award is to support a student with strong interests and aptitudes enabling the promotion of transportation solutions that prioritize the linkages between walking, cycling, and public transit. The award is made on the recommendation of the School of Community and Regional Planning and in consultation with the Faculty of Graduate and Postdoctoral Studies. (First Award Available in the 2013/2014 Winter Session)

Gurdial S. GHAG Memorial Bursary in Pharmaceutical Sciences – Bursaries totalling \$1,000 have been endowed in memory of Mr. Gurdial S. Ghag by the Ghag Family of Chilliwack comprised of numerous Pharmacy

and other UBC alumni. The bursaries are offered to one or more undergraduate students in the Faculty of Pharmaceutical Sciences who graduated from a high school in British Columbia, with first preference given to those students who graduated from a high school outside of the metro Vancouver area. Recommendation is made by Enrolment Services. (First Award available in the 2013/2014 Winter Session)

Robert and Averil KENNEDY Forestry Graduate Scholarship – A \$5,500 scholarship has been established by Dr. Robert and Averil Kennedy to increase awareness of forestry, and the forest industry, in the Canadian context. The scholarship is awarded to a student who holds an undergraduate degree from the State University of New York College of Environmental Sciences and Forestry (SUNY-ESF), and is enrolled in a thesis-based Masters' program in the Faculty of Forestry. The scholarship may be given to the same recipient for a maximum of two years. The scholarship is made on the recommendation of the Faculty of Forestry in consultation with the Faculty of Graduate and Postdoctoral Studies. (First Award Available in 2013/2014 Winter Session)

Jim and Helen HILL Memorial Service Award in Electrical Engineering – Awards totaling \$8,500 have been endowed by the estates of UBC alumni Helen Gray ('56 BSN) and Christopher James (Jim) Hill ('52 BASc). In recognition of the Hill's passion for volunteerism, the awards will go to outstanding undergraduate students in the Faculty of Applied Science studying Electrical Engineering who have demonstrated leadership through volunteerism, community service and campus activities. Financial need may be considered. The awards are made on the recommendation of the Department of Electrical & Computer Engineering. (First award available in the 2013/14 Winter Session)

Jim and Helen HILL Memorial Service Award in Nursing – Awards totalling \$8,500 have been endowed by the estates of UBC alumni Helen Gray ('56 BSN) and Christopher James (Jim) Hill ('52 BASc). In recognition of the Hill's passion for volunteerism in the community the awards will go to outstanding undergraduate nursing students who have demonstrated leadership through volunteerism, community service and campus activities. Financial need may be considered. The awards are made on the recommendation of the School of Nursing. (First award available in the 2013/14 Winter Session)

HUGILL Graduate Scholarship in Anesthesia – Scholarships totalling \$1,000 are offered to graduate students in the Department of Anesthesiology, Pharmacology and Therapeutics who are conducting research in anesthesiology. Scholarships are made on the recommendation of the Department of Anesthesiology, Pharmacology and Therapeutics, in consultation with the Faculty of Medicine and the Faculty of Graduate and Postdoctoral Studies. (First Award Available in 2013/2014 Winter Session)

HUGILL Research Award in Anesthesia - Awards totalling \$1,000 are offered to undergraduate and MD students undertaking research under the direction of the Dr. Jean Templeton Hugill Chair in Anesthesia. Awards are made on the recommendation of the Department of Anesthesiology, Pharmacology and Therapeutics, in consultation with the Faculty of Medicine. (First Award Available in 2013/2014 Winter Session)

MASTERCARD Foundation Scholars Award – Academic awards covering the full cost of tuition and living expenses are offered to outstanding international undergraduate students who are citizens of and residing in a Sub-Saharan African country. Candidates must present economically disadvantaged financial circumstances, and be able to show they lack financial means from family or other sources to pursue post-secondary (university) education in their home country or elsewhere. Candidates must furthermore have achieved academic excellence under difficult circumstances, and show leadership qualities or potential. Applicants must demonstrate an interest in and commitment to giving back to his/her home community in ways that enhance the economic growth and social development of Africa. Additionally, candidates must be graduating/recently graduated from a recognized senior secondary school and applying for their first undergraduate degree in one of the following Faculties at UBC's Vancouver campus: Arts, Applied Science Forestry, Land and Food Systems, Science, or Sauder School of Business. Candidates must also commit to returning to Africa immediately after graduation from UBC in order to apply their training and skills to the betterment of others. (First Award Available in the 2013/2014 Winter Session)

Peter MULLINS Thunderbird Men's Basketball Scholarship - One or more scholarships which may range from a minimum value of \$500 to the maximum allowable under athletic association regulations are to be offered to outstanding member(s) of the Thunderbird Men's Basketball Team in any year of study. The recipient(s) of this scholarship in the name of Dr. Peter Mullins, longtime U.B.C. basketball coach, should demonstrate a commitment

to basketball excellence, leadership and volunteering, along with good academic standing. Financial need will also be a consideration in the selection. The selection of the recipient(s) should be determined upon the recommendation of the Department of Athletics and Recreation. (First Award Available in the 2013/2014 Winter Session)

Ken PINDER Memorial Scholarship in Engineering - A \$1,000 scholarship is offered by Zeki and Gülgün Sözen as well as friends and family to honour the memory of Dr. Ken Pinder, a respected professor who dedicated 47 years to UBC, and was committed to its students and the larger community. This award is offered to an undergraduate student entering the second, third, or fourth year of Chemical and Biological Engineering in the Faculty of Applied Science. Preference is given to a student who is academically gifted and demonstrates leadership and social concern. Recommendations are made by the Department of Chemical and Biological Engineering. (First Available in the 2013/14 Winter Session)

POLLOCK Clinics Travel Award in Midwifery – Awards totalling \$2,000 are offered by Dr. Neil Pollock to assist midwifery students in financial need with the costs of their travel for a global clinical experience. Awards are made on the recommendation of the Division of Midwifery. (First Award Available in the 2013/14 Winter Session)

REICHWALD Family Foundation Southern Medical Program Award in Medicine - Two awards of \$10,000 are offered to MD students in the second year of the Southern Medical Program with first-class academic standing who also demonstrate financial need. Awards are made by the Faculty of Medicine, in consultation with the Office of Student Affairs of the Southern Medical Program. (First Award Available in the 2013/2014 Winter Session)

ROWLAND & Company Bursary in Law – A \$1,000 bursary is offered to a student in UBC Faculty of Law's JD program in financial need. It is open to students in any year of study who are residents of BC. The award is adjudicated by Enrolment Services. (First Award Available in the 2013/2014 Winter Session)

SABITRI and Sudhin Memorial Student Scholarship – Scholarship totaling \$1,000 are offered by Swaraj K. and Gayatri Chattopadhyay in memory of their Aunt Sabitri and Uncle Sudhin for students in the Faculty of Medicine who are specializing in Oncology. Sabitri and Sudhin both passed away from cancer. Financial need may be considered in the awarding of the scholarship. Recommendations are made by the Faculty of Medicine, and in the case of graduate students, in consultation with the Faculty of Graduate and Postdoctoral Studies. (First Award Available in the 2013/2014 Winter Session)

SOMERSET Foundation Award in Men's Rugby – One or more awards, ranging from a minimum value of \$500 each to the maximum allowable under athletic association guidelines are offered by Somerset Foundation to Thunderbird varsity rugby team members, in any year of study, upon their application to the head coach. Financial need will be taken into consideration. Award values are determined on the recommendation of the head coach to the Athletics Awards Committee, subject to funding availability to a maximum annual total of \$5,000 per calendar year and subject to the student maintaining good academic standing. (First Award Available in the 2013/2014 Winter Session)

Mary Alice SUTTER and Blake Wright Medicine Bursary – A \$2,500 bursary has been endowed by Dr. Mary Alice Sutter and Dr. Blake Wright. The bursary is awarded to a student in the Faculty of Medicine MD Program in financial need. Both doctors are graduates of UBC Faculty of Medicine. Dr. Sutter (MD 1960) completed her F. R. C. S. C. C. in Obstetrics and Gynecology and Dr. Wright (MD 1965) was a Fellow in the College of Family Practice. They met at the Seymour Medical Clinic where they practiced until retirement. Dr. Sutter was a Clinical Associate Professor at U. B. C. and is a member of the Alpha Omega Alpha Honor Medical Society. They are married with 2 children and 4 grandchildren. The award is adjudicated by Enrolment Services. (First Award Available in the 2013/2014 Winter Session)

TD Aboriginal Student Award in Business – Awards totalling \$11,375 have been endowed by TD Bank Group to support Aboriginal students at UBC's Vancouver campus. Preference is given to Canadian Aboriginal students enrolled in the Sauder School of Business. The candidates' participation in community and university activities may be taken into account in selecting recipients. The awards are made on the recommendation of the School in consultation with the First Nations House of Learning. If there are no qualified students in the Sauder School of Business, the School can refer the award back to Enrolment Services so that it can be made on the recommendation of the Department of Economics in the Faculty of Arts to undergraduate Aboriginal students majoring in Economics. (First Award Available in the 2013/2014 Winter Session)

Bruce TODD Thunderbird Memorial Hockey Award – Two awards, each with a minimum value of \$500 to the maximum allowable under athletic association guidelines, are offered by family, friends, and colleagues in memory of Dr Bruce Todd. The awards are offered to outstanding members of UBC Thunderbirds Varsity Ice Hockey Team who have distinguished themselves both academically and athletically at UBC, with preference given to one male and one female student athlete in Science, Engineering, Medicine, or Education. Bruce had a long and distinguished association with UBC, starting in 1989 as a postdoctoral fellow in Chemistry Department and continuing as a lecturer and instructor during the 1990s. In 2000, he became the Manager and Director of the Instrumentation Prototyping and Development Facility at the UBC Laboratory for Molecular Biophysics. Over the next decade Bruce was involved in several major research initiatives at the Facility, in collaboration with research groups from Chemistry, Biochemistry, Applied Science and Medicine. His enthusiasm and passion for learning was evident in his academic and research work, as well as his outstanding contributions as a coach for the Vancouver Thunderbirds Minor Hockey. The awards are made on the recommendation of the Varsity Athletic Awards Committee. (First Award Available in the 2013/2014 Winter Session)

VANCOUVER Island Health Authority Aboriginal Award in Sciences – A \$1,000 award is offered by the Vancouver Island Health Authority for an Aboriginal student enrolled in one of the following programs: Physiotherapy, Occupational Therapy, Nutrition, Speech Language Pathology, or Pharmacy. The award is open to both undergraduate and graduate students. When possible, preference is given to a First Nation, Metis or Inuit student from Vancouver Island, and in the case that no student from the Island is eligible, to a First Nation, Metis or Inuit student from British Columbia. Adjudication is made by the First Nations House of Learning in consultation with Enrollment Services and, in the case of a graduate student, in consultation with the Faculty of Graduate and Postdoctoral Studies. (First Award Available in the 2013/2014 Winter Session)

Previously-Approved Awards with Changes in Terms or Funding Source:

#960 GOLDER Associates Ltd. Sustainability Award in Landscape Architecture – A \$1,000 award is offered by Golder Associates Ltd. to a student entering the second or third year in the Landscape Architecture Program. Preference is given to a student who has demonstrated outstanding design creativity and commitment to addressing sustainability, community well-being and resilience issues such as climate change, water management, ecosystem biodiversity, sustainable food systems, resource management and other related issues. The award is made on the recommendation of the Landscape Architecture Program, School of Architecture and Landscape Architecture in consultation with the Faculty of Graduate Studies.

<u>How amended</u>: change in the award names and description to reflect the change in the organization donor's name.

#1431 INTERNATIONAL Undergraduate Study Preparation Program (IUSPP) Scholarship in Continuing Studies – Three scholarships of \$1,000 each are offered by Mr. Ming Cai to international students who have previously graduated from the International Undergraduate Study Preparation Program (IUSPP) of UBC Continuing Studies, are currently in the second year of any undergraduate degree program at the University of British Columbia, have completed no less than 27 credits in their first year at UBC with no failed courses, and achieved a minimum grade average of 75%. The awards are made to the top three candidates with the top grade averages on the recommendation of UBC Continuing Studies, in consultation with Enrolment Services.

<u>How amended</u>: change in the award name and description to reflect the new program name and increase in the number of awards.

#1609 WOLRIGE Mahon Scholarship – Four \$500 scholarships are provided by Wolrige Mahon, LLP, Chartered Accountants, to four students in the third year of the Accounting option in the Sauder School of Business. They are made on the recommendation of the School based on academic standing, leadership qualities and interest in pursuing careers as Chartered Accountants.

How amended: faculty name updated to current informal name: Sauder School of Business.

#2006 Agness PHILIPPS Scholarship in Education - Scholarships totalling \$2,600 have been endowed by the Estate of Agnes Philipps for students in the Faculty of Education who have completed or are enrolled in the Bachelor of Education program and have identified Visual Art as a teaching area. Recommendations are made by the Faculty of Education.

<u>How amended</u>: removed reference to Visual and Performing Arts program as being a diploma program

#2886 Joseph Atkinson STORROW and Caroline Mary Storrow Memorial Scholarship in Law – A \$200 scholarship has been endowed in memory of Joseph Atkinson Storrow and Caroline Mary Storrow by family and friends for the student with the highest standing in the first year of the Indigenous Legal Studies Program and is made on the recommendation of the Faculty of Law.

How amended: replaced "First Nations" with "Indigenous" to reflect the name change to the program.

#3548 Birgit and Ingrid CURREY Award in Nursing – Awards totalling \$12,500 are offered by H. David Currey, BASc (Agricultural Engineering), 1950 for students pursuing an undergraduate degree in Nursing in the Faculty of Applied Science. In addition to academic merit, consideration is given to qualities such as leadership skills, involvement in student affairs, extracurricular activities or community service. Preference will be given to students demonstrating financial need. These awards are established in memory of Mr. Currey's wife, Birgit, a Swedish nurse, and in honour of their daughter, Ingrid, who is an active teacher in psychiatric nursing. No individual award shall exceed \$4,000. Awards are made on the recommendation of the School of Nursing.

<u>How amended</u>: reversed the order of the names "Ingrid" and "Birgit" in the title as per the donor's request.

#3732 Finlay A. MORRISON Scholarship in Pharmaceutical Sciences - A scholarship of \$550 has been endowed by James Eng Wing (BSc(Pharm)'54), to honour Dr. Finlay A. Morrison's many years of service to the Faculty and to the profession of Pharmacy, and to mark his continuing interest in Pharmaceutics and Pharmacy Administration. The award is made to the student entering fourth year in the Faculty of Pharmaceutical Sciences and obtaining the highest standing in Pharmaceutics and/or Pharmacy Administration in the preceding 3 years of the program.

<u>How amended</u>: removed reference to Alpha Pharmaceutical Supplies Company.

#3772 Subhash C. VERMA Memorial Prize in Pharmaceutical Sciences – A \$500 prize is offered by Dr Subodh Verma, Sandra Del Signore, and Sujata Verma in memory of their father, Dr Subhash C. Verma for graduate students in Pharmaceutical Sciences. The award is made on the recommendation of the Faculty of Pharmaceutical Sciences for the best paper published or presented in the area of Pharmacology or Toxicology.

<u>How amended</u>: added the name, Sandra Del Signore, to the first line of the description.

#3794 PHARMACEUTICAL Sciences Rural Communities Placement Award – A \$1,000 award is offered by the Pharmacy Alumni Group to assist a Fourth Year Entry-to-Practice student in their Experiential Education rotation in rural BC. To be eligible for the award, the candidate will have demonstrated their need for this funding as required by the Faculty of Pharmaceutical Science. The award will be made on the recommendation of the Faculty.

How amended: decreased number of awards to one and increased award value.

#5376 ALLNORTH Award of Excellence in Engineering – Two \$1000 awards are offered by Allnorth to third or fourth year undergraduate students studying Civil, Electrical, or Mechanical Engineering who exemplify both academic excellence and leadership qualities. Class participation and involvement in university and community organizations will be taken into consideration. The awards are made on the recommendation of the Departments of Civil, Electrical, and Mechanical Engineering in alternating years.

<u>How amended</u>: change in award name and description to reflect the donor's new name.

#5864 Harold F. and Anne Bedner UPHILL Scholarship in Law - Scholarships totalling \$30,300 have been endowed through a bequest by Anne Margaret Uphill for female students with high academic standing in the Indigenous Legal Studies Program. The awards are open to students in any year of the graduate (LL.M., Ph.D.) or undergraduate (J.D.) Program and on the recommendation of the Faculty of Law. In the case of graduate student nomination, the award is made in consultation with the Faculty of Graduate Studies.

How amended: replaced "First Nations" with "Indigenous" to reflect the name change to the program.

#6362 James and Setsuko THURLOW Scholarship in Disarmament Studies - Scholarships totalling \$5,000 have been endowed by James and Setsuko Thurlow and by The University of British Columbia for graduate students pursuing studies in disarmament or weapons of mass destruction (primarily nuclear weapons). The award is made on the recommendation of the Faculty of Graduate Studies.

How amended: removed "peace" from the title.

#6464 GOLDER Associates Ltd. Graduate Scholarship in Sustainability Planning – A \$1,000 scholarship is offered by Golder Associates Ltd. to a second year School of Community and Regional Planning student who demonstrates commitment and creativity in addressing sustainability challenges in community development planning and design. Specifically, this award favours a student who targets pragmatic solutions to sustainability challenges in ways that integrate planning and design in addressing climate change, urban habitat, active transportation, urban landscape design, sustainable food systems, water management, green infrastructure systems, innovative community dialogue methods, rural community solutions and First Nations development. The award is made on the recommendation of the School in consultation with the Faculty of Graduate Studies.

<u>How amended</u>: change in the award names and description to reflect the change in the organization donor's name.

#6475 Ibn BATTUTA Award for Field Research – A \$3,000 travel award is offered to a graduate student in any field of study who wishes to conduct field research in the following Muslim-majority countries: Afghanistan, Algeria, Comoros, Iraq, Iran, Jordan, Libya, Maldives, Mauritania, Morocco, State of Palestine, Pakistan, Saudi Arabia, Somalia, Syria, Tajikistan, Tunisia, Turkey, Xinjiang (Western China) and Yemen. To be considered, graduate students must have a minimum overall GPA of 80% in their last two years of study. Candidates should also have completed at least one course in field research methods, or be able to demonstrate equivalent knowledge. Award is made on the recommendation of the Faculty of Graduate Studies.

How amended: update one of the countries listed in the award criteria.

#6489 ELDORADO International Graduate Award in Mining Engineering - Awards totalling \$40,000 are offered by Eldorado to international students who are from a country that Eldorado operates. To be considered candidates must be enrolled in the Master of Engineering in Mining Engineering program. Candidates may have the opportunity to undertake a co-op work placement with Eldorado during their degree through the UBC Engineering Co-op Office. The nominating committee will take into account not only the student's academic record, but also other qualities which may lead to a successful career in mining. The award is made on the recommendation of the Norman B Keevil Institute of Mining Engineering.

<u>How amended</u>: donor wanted to include the caveat that the student be from a country that Eldorado has a site location.

#7523 BRITISH Columbia Medical Association Bursary – One hundred and twenty four bursaries of \$1,750 each are offered by the British Columbia Medical Association to undergraduate students in the Faculty of Medicine who are student members of the B.C. Medical Association, with demonstrated financial need. Preference for one award of \$1,750 is given to an Aboriginal student. The awards are adjudicated by Enrolment Services.

How amended: updated award description to reflect the change in the source of funding for the bursary.

#8044 PEO Sisterhood Chapter B Bursary For the Blind – Bursaries totalling \$600 have been endowed by the PEO Sisterhood Chapter B in memory of Helen Mitchell and by the Estate of Hazel Lena Wilson in memory of John Mortimer Patrick, to assist blind students. The bursary is awarded on the recommendation of the Committee on Awards for Students with Disabilities.

<u>How amended</u>: there was a \$70,000 bequest from the estate of Hazel Lena Wilson to augment this fund. We have updated the description to honour and reflect this gift.

#8105 Elaine S MCKENNA Kay Memorial Bursary - An \$800 bursary has been endowed in memory of Elaine S. McKenna by her family, friends and colleagues. Preference is given to a mature woman student registered in first or second year law.

How amended: decreased number of bursaries to one and increased award value.

#8358 William MCARTHUR Memorial Bursary - A \$600 bursary has been endowed by family and friends in loving memory of Dr. William (Bill) McArthur, who was the first Chief Coroner for British Columbia and, until his passing, pursued his love of medicine in part-time family practice. The award is offered to students in the Faculty of Science.

<u>How amended</u>: revised the description so that only a single bursary can be assigned to a student from the fund as per the donor's wish.

#8412 Glen and Margaret CARLSON Bursary in Medicine - Bursaries totaling \$17,875 have been endowed by Dr. Glen C. Carlson (B.A.1955, M.D.1960) and Dr. Margaret A. Carlson (B.Sc.1958, M.D.1964) for students in the M.D. program offered through the Faculty of Medicine. Each bursary will be \$5,000 or greater in value with the intent that this bursary provide a significant portion of each student's total bursary funding.

How amended: minimum of \$5,000 assignment included as per the donor's request

#5379 FACULTY of Applied Science International Student Scholarship - Scholarships of amounts of up to \$5,000 each are offered to continuing international students in the Faculty of Applied Science, Vancouver campus. Students selected for these scholarships must have completed at least 30 credits towards their undergraduate degree or be entering the second year of their program. Students must demonstrate strong academic achievement, engagement in the Faculty, and the potential to make a scholarly contribution within their chosen field of study. The scholarships are made on the recommendation of the Faculty of Applied Science.

<u>How amended</u>: This scholarship is new as of 2012. Feedback from the Faculty after the first year of recommending students for this scholarship indicates they would like to have the option to recommend second year students who excelled in their first year of study for this scholarship in addition to continuing to consider strong upper year students.

1392 FACULTY of Arts International Student Scholarship - Scholarships of amounts of up to \$5,000 each are offered to continuing international students in the Faculty of Arts, Vancouver campus. Students selected for these scholarships must have completed at least 30 credits towards their undergraduate degree or be entering the second year of their program. Students must demonstrate strong academic achievement, engagement in the Faculty, and the potential to make a scholarly contribution within their chosen field of study. The scholarships are made on the recommendation of the Faculty of Arts.

<u>How amended</u>: this scholarship is new as of 2012. Feedback from the Faculty after the first year of recommending students for this scholarship indicates they would like to have the option to recommend second year students who excelled in their first year of study for this scholarship in addition to continuing to consider strong upper year students.

#2408 FACULTY of Forestry International Student Scholarship – Scholarships of amounts of up to \$5,000 each are offered to continuing international students in the Faculty of Forestry. Students selected for these scholarships must have completed at least 30 credits towards their undergraduate degree or be entering the second year of their program. Students must demonstrate strong academic achievement, engagement in the Faculty, and the potential to make a scholarly contribution within their chosen field of study. The scholarships are made on the recommendation of the Faculty of Forestry.

<u>How amended</u>: this scholarship is new as of 2012. Feedback from the Faculty after the first year of recommending students for this scholarship indicates they would like to have the option to recommend second year students who excelled in their first year of study for this scholarship in addition to continuing to consider strong upper year students.

#4000 SCHOOL of Kinesiology International Student Scholarship – Scholarships of amounts of up to \$5,000 each are offered to continuing international students in the School of Kinesiology, Vancouver campus. Students selected for these scholarships must have completed at least 30 credits towards their undergraduate degree or be entering the second year of their program. Students must demonstrate strong academic achievement, engagement in the School, and the potential to make a scholarly contribution within their chosen field of study. The scholarships are made on the recommendation of the School of Kinesiology.

How amended: this scholarship is new as of 2012. Feedback from the Faculty after the first year of recommending students for this scholarship indicates they would like to have the option to recommend second year students who excelled in their first year of study for this scholarship in addition to continuing to consider strong upper year students.

#809 FACULTY of Land and Food Systems International Student Scholarship – Scholarships of amounts of up to \$5,000 each are offered to continuing international students in the Faculty of Land and Food Systems. Students selected for these scholarships must have completed at least 30 credits towards their undergraduate degree or be entering the second year of their program. Students must demonstrate strong academic achievement, engagement in the Faculty, and the potential to make a scholarly contribution within their chosen field of study. The scholarships are made on the recommendation of the Faculty of Land and Food Systems.

<u>How amended</u>: this scholarship is new as of 2012. Feedback from the Faculty after the first year of recommending students for this scholarship indicates they would like to have the option to recommend second year students who excelled in their first year of study for this scholarship in addition to continuing to consider strong upper year students.

#3383 SCHOOL of Music International Student Scholarship – Scholarships of amounts of up to \$5,000 each are offered to continuing international students in the School of Music. Students selected for these scholarships must have completed at least 30 credits towards their undergraduate degree or be entering the second year of their program. Students must demonstrate strong academic achievement, engagement in the School, and the potential to make a scholarly contribution within their chosen field of study. The scholarships are made on the recommendation of the School of Music.

<u>How amended</u>: this scholarship is new as of 2012. Feedback from the Faculty after the first year of recommending students for this scholarship indicates they would like to have the option to recommend second year students who excelled in their first year of study for this scholarship in addition to continuing to consider strong upper year students.

#1014 SAUDER School of Business International Student Scholarship – Scholarships of amounts of up to \$5,000 each are offered to continuing international students in the Sauder School of Business. Students selected for these scholarships must have completed at least 30 credits towards their undergraduate degree or be entering the

second year of their program. Students must demonstrate strong academic achievement, engagement in their faculty, and the potential to make a scholarly contribution within their chosen field of study. The scholarships are made on the recommendation of the Sauder School of Business.

<u>How amended</u>: this scholarship is new as of 2012. Feedback from the Faculty after the first year of recommending students for this scholarship indicates they would like to have the option to recommend second year students who excelled in their first year of study for this scholarship in addition to continuing to consider strong upper year students.

4451 FACULTY of Science International Student Scholarship - Scholarships of amounts of up to \$5,000 each are offered to continuing international students in the Faculty of Science, Vancouver campus. Students selected for these scholarships must have completed at least 30 credits towards their undergraduate degree or be entering the second year of their program. Students must demonstrate strong academic achievement, engagement in the Faculty, and the potential to make a scholarly contribution within their chosen field of study. The scholarships are made on the recommendation of the Faculty of Science.

<u>How amended</u>: this scholarship is new as of 2012. Feedback from the Faculty after the first year of recommending students for this scholarship indicates they would like to have the option to recommend second year students who excelled in their first year of study for this scholarship in addition to continuing to consider strong upper year students.